
Minutes of the Board of Licensing Commissioners for their meeting held on Tuesday, February 22, 
2011, at 1 PM in the Weymouth Town Hall, Chambers, 75 Middle Street 
 
Attendance:  Chairman Franklin Fryer; Jeffrey Richards, Director of Municipal Licenses & 
Inspections; Acting Fire Chief Joseph Davis;  Police Chief Richard Grimes; Daniel McCormack, 
Director of Health; Town Solicitor George E. Lane, Jr.; and Licensing Officer Brian King. 
 
Chairman Fryer called the meeting to order at 1 PM.   
 
APPROVALS  
 

• Minutes: January 25, 2011 
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION to approve the January 25, 2011 meeting minutes.  
Chief Grimes seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY VOTED 
 

• One-Day Wine & Malt Permit: St. Jerome Parish, 632 Bridge St.  
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION to approve a One-Day Wine & Malt Permit for St. Jerome Parish 
for an event on March 19, 2011 from 6 PM to 12 AM.  Chief Grimes seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY 
VOTED 
 

• Fundraiser/Poppy Drive: Ladies Auxiliary – George R. Bean Post #79 
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION to approve a request for the Annual Poppy Drive to be held in the 
Town of Weymouth by the Ladies’ Auxiliary of the George R. Bean Post #79 on May 19-22 and 
May 26-29, 2011.  Acting Chief Davis seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY VOTED. 

 
DISCUSSION WITH MAURA, INC. D/B/A NEXT PAGE CAFÉ, 550 BROAD ST. RE: 
ANNUAL ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 
 
Attorney Paul Hajjar and Mr. Edward Page, Owner, were present for the discussion.  
 
Attorney Hajjar stated Mr. Page had submitted a written sound study which was conducted by Mr. 
Charles Tappa, Pro Sound Service.  The study was performed at the request of Mr. Page showing 
audio sound level measurements taken on and around the premises of Next Page Café, 550 Broad 
Street, Weymouth, MA.  The study found that the levels were 2-4% above ambient level of sound.  
As a result the emergency push bar was installed on the back door, the walls were insulated and a 
window was replaced.  Originally, the rear door was added and the A/C was removed.  The cost of 
$1,100 for changes made.   
 
Mr. Charles Tappa of Pro Sound Service Inc. stated that per law 2-4% is an acceptable level; 10% 
over ambient sound level.   
 
Officer King reported that as of November 2010 to last Friday the station has received 10 noise 
complaints; majority of which were around 12 AM.  It seems as the night goes on the noise level  



BOARD OF LICENSING COMMISSIONERS 
Tuesday, February 22, 2011 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 
gets higher.  Even though the levels were measured as “acceptable”, they are still receiving calls.  
The acceptable levels are still a quantitative amount not what someone finds objectionable.  The 
music volume needs to be turned down as well as the bass.   
 
Attorney Hajjar stated the noise levels have been measured as acceptable. 
 
Chairman Fryer stated they need to abide by what the meter says.  
 
Attorney Hajjar replied they are well below what the Board of Health regulations read.  
 
Mr. Tappa stated he did several readings, including when the band was playing in the evening.  The 
meters are calibrated to insure proper accurate readings.  The baselines were performed inside and 
outside without the band playing.  He was in line with the front corner of the neighbor’s property.  
He suggested boarding up and insulating a window and that a crossbar be installed on the rear door.  
According to his observations they were 2-4 dbs above what the ambient level is.  He took the 
readings on the broadest scale to get the most accurate picture.  
 
Mr. David Crawford, 546 Broad Street, spoke before the Board, stating it is not a question of 
nuisance but a question of stress; a public health matter.  They should be a good neighbor.  The 
noise issue has been ongoing for ten years, happening 1-3 nights per week.  It affects his quality of 
sleep. 
 
Solicitor Lane stated this is a discussion, not a hearing today.  Any contemplative action would have 
to be marked up and notice given as a hearing. Entertainment requires being in accordance with the 
law. 
 
Chief Grimes asked Mr. Tappa if management was aware that he was outside taking the readings. 
 
Mr. Tappa replied, yes, Councilor Kenneth DiFazio was present with him.   
 
Attorney Hajjar stated the measurements were taken at the request of the Board and done within 
requirements.  
 
Chairman Fryer stated there have been quite a few discussions, but there is still noise there.  
 
Attorney Hajjar stated just because you can hear it doesn’t mean it is affecting the decibel reading. 
They should take into consideration Mr. Page’s effort to appease and the cost involved between 
hiring the professionals to perform the sound study as well as the renovations performed. 
 
Chairman Fryer asked the audience if anyone wished to speak on the matter. 
 
Mr. Kenneth DiFazio, District 3 Councilor, stated he had not heard of any complaints regarding the 
matter.  Mr. Page contacted him and asked for him to be present during the readings as he is the 
Councilor for that area.  During the entertainment, it could be heard from outside but he didn’t think 
it was loud; although, living next door it may be.  He suggested that an unannounced reading be  



BOARD OF LICENSING COMMISSIONERS 
Tuesday, February 22, 2011 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 
performed to rule out doubt.  The threshold may be not what you are enforcing here. 
 
Mr. McCormack stated the noise regulation is in accordance with the Board of Health Nuisance 
Regulation #17, which mirrors the Department of Environmental Protection’s regulation.  He 
performed a reading in 2004, done with an older meter which was not calibrated.  Since such time, a 
newer meter has been purchased and he stated he would be happy to take additional readings.   
 
Mr. Richards stated the noise continues to be the issue, whether it is within the permissible level or 
not. The Board would need to determine whether to hold a hearing to act further. 
 
Mr. Crawford suggested taking a reading at or after 12 midnight when it affects him.  
 
Attorney Hajjar stated they took the initiative and had the study performed and made the 
renovations suggested.  
 
Chief Grimes suggested the police modify their response to calls compared to response during the 
past 6-8 years.  He believes it should be a little more investigative to make an observation/opinion, 
with a written report made.  Police would report to the complainant’s house. 
 
Mr. Page stated that was suggested before.  As a result, he had a sound meter decibel machine 
installed onsite.  
 
Chairman Fryer recommended giving it another month.  If they have any more complaints, the 
Board will have to set up a hearing.  Everyone needs to pull together and make it work. 
 
Officer King told Mr. Page as the business owner he should simply tell his patrons and the band to 
keep the noise down. 
 
Attorney Hajjar stated he was sure Mr. Page would not be opposed to anonymous readings.  He 
asked for the matter to be considered closed until further notice.                                                                               
 
DISCUSSION – QUARTERLY REVIEW – COLONIAL BOWL, 1055 MAIN ST.  
 
Mr. Richards stated he spoke with the Assistant Treasurer/Collector who confirmed Ms. Burbine is 
current with her payment agreement.  
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION to continue a review in another quarter.  Acting Chief Davis 
seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY VOTED 
 
PURSUANT TO M.G.L. CHAPTER 138, SECTION 64, LIQUOR VIOLATION HEARING TO 
CONSIDER MODIFICATION, SUSPENSION, REVOCATION OR CANCELLATION OF THE 
ALL ALCOHOLIC RESTAURANT LICENSE OF: WEEZIE, INC. D/B/A THE 
CLIFFHANGER, 220 BRIDGE ST.  
 
Mr. Clifford Marshall, III, owner, was present as well as his employee.  



BOARD OF LICENSING COMMISSIONERS 
Tuesday, February 22, 2011 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
Solicitor Lane stated he spoke with Mr. Marshall regarding the incident, who acknowledged that it 
had happened.  A determination for a finding of a first offense would be appropriate.  
 
Solicitor Lane swore in all testifying parties in regards to the incident which occurred at Cliffhanger 
on December 17, 2010 for an alleged violation of law, M.G.L., Chapter 138, section 34, “Sale or 
delivery of alcoholic beverages to an under-aged person.”  He also submitted the hearing notice into 
the record after affirming it with Mr. Marshall.  
 
Solicitor Lane called Officer Cheryl Potter of the Weymouth Police Department, forward for 
testimony. She acknowledged that she was performing a Police Compliance Operation with an 
under-aged operative on the evening of December 17, 2010.  She read the incident report into the 
record and the document was submitted into the record by Solicitor Lane. 
 
Mr. Marshall didn’t have any questions or comments. 
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION for a finding of a first offense of the sale of alcohol to an under-
aged person at Cliffhangers on December 17, 2010.  Acting Chief Davis seconded.  
UNANIMOUSLY VOTED 
 
Solicitor Lane stated per the Liquor Violation Guidelines the assessment of a one to three day 
suspension would be appropriate. 
 
Mr. Marshall stated he understands the importance of the matter.  He has been in business for 11 
years without a violation.  He and his employees have attended the alcohol awareness program 
provided by the Town.   
 
Mr. Richards asked what he has done as a result of the incident.  
 
Mr. Marshall stated he held a meeting with his employees and discussed the importance of carding 
the patrons.  They were told to card all who order a drink.  He requested that a warning be issued as 
it is their first offense. 
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION for a finding of guilty and that a warning is issued.  Acting Chief 
Davis seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY VOTED 
 
PURSUANT TO M.G.L. CHAPTER 138, SECTION 64, LIQUOR VIOLATION HEARING TO 
CONSIDER MODIFICATION, SUSPENSION, REVOCATION OR CANCELLATION OF THE 
WINE & MALT RESTAURANT LICENSE OF: FRANCO’S PIZZA, INC. D/B/A FRANCO’S 
PIZZA, 130 MAIN ST.  
 
Mr. Domenic Bitto, owner, and his employees were present.   
 
Solicitor Lane stated he requested for the Weymouth Police Department to have the under-aged 
operative present for the hearing, but the individual is not.  The Police Officer will testify to the 
incident solely.  He swore in all testifying parties in regards to the incident which occurred at  



BOARD OF LICENSING COMMISSIONERS 
Tuesday, February 22, 2011 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 
Franco’s Pizza, Inc. d/b/a Franco’s Pizza on December 17, 2010 for alleged violations of law, 
M.G.L., Chapter 138, section 34, “Sale or delivery of alcoholic beverages to an under-aged person.” 
and “Sale of beverages by an employee under the age of 18 years”.  He submitted the hearing notice 
into the record after affirming it with Mr. Bitto.  
 
Mr. Bitto stated he has been in business for many years.  He questioned where the under-aged 
person was standing when the beer was ordered.  He stated it happened during a busy night.  He 
didn’t question the incident further as the officer knew what happened.   
                                                                                                                
Solicitor Lane called Officer Ryan Hamacher of the Weymouth Police Department, forward for 
testimony. He acknowledged that he was performing a Police Compliance Operation with an under-
aged operative on the evening of December 17, 2010.  He read the incident report into the record. 
 
Solicitor Lane asked Officer Hamacher if the under-aged server was verified.  
 
Officer Hamacher replied, yes, and her name was Amanda Grover.  
 
Solicitor Lane asked Officer Hamacher where Ms. Hultin, under-aged operative, was when he 
ordered, and was delivered the pitcher of Bud Light.   
 
Officer Hamacher replied the pitcher of beer was delivered to the counter and he was asked how 
many glasses—Ms. Hultin was standing right next to him.  She was facing them at all times. 
 
Solicitor Lane submitted the Police Report into the record.  He asked Mr. Bitto if he had any 
questions for Officer Hamacher. 
 
Mr. Bitto asked Officer Hamacher who ordered the beer. 
 
Officer Hamacher replied he did.  The clerk, identified as Amanda Grover, asked for ids.  He 
presented his id and Ms. Hultin told her that she had forgotten hers.   
 
The general manager testified, stating she was there that night; the place was packed and no one 
told her what had happened.  The servers may have been confused—it was a busy night.  
 
Mr. Richard McCluskey stated it was very busy.  Ms. Amanda Grover’s job was to check ids.  He 
poured the beer and served it as Ms. Grover is less than 18 years old.  There was a 
misunderstanding.   They now have a policy to check all ids.   
 
Solicitor Lane said it is up to the Board to make a finding of the two charges. 
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION for a finding of a violation of the sale of alcohol to an under-aged 
person at Frank’s Pizza on December 17, 2010.  Acting Chief Davis seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY 
VOTED 
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION for a finding of a violation of sale of alcoholic beverages by an  



BOARD OF LICENSING COMMISSIONERS 
Tuesday, February 22, 2011 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 
employee under the age of 18 years.  No second—MOTION FAILED. 
 
Solicitor Lane stated the establishment was found guilty of a violation in June 1995.  The Board 
may take this into consideration.  A 1st violation is assessed a 1-3 day suspension and a 2nd violation 
is assessed a 3-6 day suspension.  
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION to assess a suspension for a 1st offense, given the time that has 
passed, with a one day suspension.  Mr. McCormack seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY VOTED 
 
Solicitor Lane stated the suspension will be served on Thursday, March 10th. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
• Meeting Schedule 
 
Mr. Richards MOTIONED to set the February meeting date as: Tuesday, March 22, 2011 at 1 PM.  
Acting Chief Davis seconded.  UNANIMOUSLY VOTED 
 
NEW/OLD BUSINESS 
 
• Weymouth Motor Sales, Inc. d/b/a Weymouth Honda, 875 Washington St.  
 
Mr. Richards stated he wasn’t present at the last meeting.  In regards to Weymouth Motor Sales, 
Inc. a Zoning Board of Appeals application is pending.  They are currently parking vehicles at the 
former Mass Electric building.  An answer is pending for the future.  The result is a 90 day process.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Richards made a MOTION to adjourn at 3:30 PM. Acting Chief Davis seconded.  
UNANIMOUSLY VOTED  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lisa VanWinkle,  
Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
Approved:       Date: 
 
 

Jeffrey E. Richards, C.B.O., Clerk 
Director of Municipal Licenses & Inspections  


